

COLLEEN M. SWEDYK MEDINA COUNTY RECORDER MEDINA, OH RECORDED ON

01/12/2012

REC FEE:

PAGES:

DOC TYPE: REGUL

COUNTY RECORD

COLLEEN M. SWEDYK

(DO NOT REMOVE THIS COVER SHEET. THIS IS THE FIRST PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT)

## **CODE OF REGULATIONS**

#### FOR

## THE ASSOCIATION OF FALCON RIDGE, INC.

#### ARTICLE I.

#### **GENERAL**

- **SECTION 1.** Name and Nature of the Association. The name of the Association shall be The Association of Falcon Ridge, Inc., and shall be an Ohio nonprofit corporation.
- SECTION 2. Membership. Each owner upon acquisition of title to a Lot (as defined in the Falcon Pointe Declaration) shall automatically become a member of the Association (a "Member"). Such Membership shall terminate upon the sale or other disposition by such Member of his or her Lot ownership, at which time the new Owner of such Lot shall automatically become a Member of the Association.
- Definitions. The terms used in this Code of Regulations SECTION 3. shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and Reservation of Easements recorded with the Recorder of Medina County as Document No. 2004OR046064 and 2004OR046740 (the "Lake Medina Declaration") and in the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions of Falcon Cluster Area aka Falcon Ridge Recorder Medina County as Document the of recorded (the "Falcon Pointe Declaration"), unless the context shall prohibit.

#### ARTICLE II.

#### **MEMBERS**

- SECTION 1. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Members as may be designated by the Board of Trustees either in Medina, Medina County, Ohio or as convenient thereto as possible and practical.
- **SECTION 2.** Annual Meetings. The first meeting of the Members, whether a regular or special meeting, shall be held within one (1) year from the date of incorporation of the Association. The next annual meeting shall be set by the Board so as to occur no later than thirty (30) days before the close of the Association's fiscal year.

8371

Subsequent annual meetings of the Members shall be held within thirty (30) days of the same day of the same month each year thereafter at an hour set by the Board. The annual meeting of the Members shall be held at a date and time as set by the Board.

**SECTION 3. Special Meetings.** The President may call special meetings. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call special meetings of the Association if so directed by resolution of a majority of a quorum of the Board of Trustees or a written petition signed by at least twenty-five (25%) percent of the total votes of the Association. The notice of special meetings shall state the date, time, and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at special meetings except as stated in the notice.

SECTION 4. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or cause to be delivered to the Owner of record of each Lot a notice of each annual or special meetings of the Association stating the purpose of the special meetings, as well as the time and place where it is to be held. If an Owner wishes notice to be given at an address other than his or her Lot, he or she shall designate such address by written notice to the Secretary. The mailing or delivering of a notice of a meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice. Notices shall be served not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before a meeting.

SECTION 5. Waiver of Notice. Waiver of notice of a meeting of the Members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Members, either before or after the holding of such meeting. Attendance of any Member at any meeting without protesting the lack of proper notice prior to or at the commencement of the meeting shall be deemed to be a waiver by him or her of notice of that meeting.

SECTION 6. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meetings of the Association cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Members who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business that might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted. If a time and place of the adjourned meeting are not fixed by those in attendance at the original meeting, or if for any reason a new date is fixed for the adjourned meeting after adjournment, notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting shall be given to Members in the manner prescribed for regular meetings.

Those present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members to leave less than a quorum, provided that any action taken shall be approved by at least a majority of Members required to constitute a quorum.

**SECTION 7. Voting Rights.** Each Lot shall have one vote. If only one of several Owners for a Lot is present at a meeting of the Association, that Owner is entitled to cast the vote allocated to that Lot. If more than one of the Owners is present,

837,2

the vote allocated to that Lot may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the Owners. There is a majority agreement if any one of the Owners casts a vote allocated to that Lot without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the other Owners of the Lot. The Association may adopt rules regarding deadlocks. No votes allocated to a Lot owned by the Association may be cast. Voting at elections and votes on other matters may be conducted by mail.

Unless expressly reserved and the Association is notified of such reservation, a land contract vendee as defined in Chapter 5313 of the Revised Code, shall be deemed the proxy of a land contract vendor for purposes of this section.

SECTION 8. Proxies. A vote allocated to a Lot may be cast pursuant to a proxy duly executed by an Owner. If a Lot is owned by more than one person, each Owner of the Lot may vote or register protest to the casting of votes by the Owners of a Lot through a duly executed proxy. An Owner may revoke a proxy given pursuant to this section only by actual notice of revocation to the person presiding over a meeting of the Association. A proxy is void if it is not dated or purports to be revocable without notice. Except as hereinafter provided, a proxy shall terminate one year after its date, unless it specifies a shorter time. If a first mortgagee has been designated a proxy under the terms of a first mortgage covering the Lot, its presentation to the Board of a copy of the mortgage shall be notice of the proxy designation, and if the mortgage so states, of the irrevocability of that designation. Written notice to the Board of notice in a meeting of a revocation of a proxy designation shall not affect any vote or act previously taken. Each proxy shall automatically cease upon conveyance of the Lot.

SECTION 9. Majority of Owners. As used in this Code of Regulations; the term majority shall mean those votes, Owners, Members or other group as the context may indicate totaling more than fifty (50%) percent of the total number. For clarification, a "majority of the Owners" shall mean the Owners of 50% or more of the total Lots.

**SECTION 10.** Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in this Code of Regulations or in the Declaration, those Members present in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association. Any provision in the Declaration concerning quorums is specifically incorporated herein.

SECTION 11. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association, and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in the minute book all resolutions adopted, as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat.

SECTION 12. Action Without a Meeting. Any action which may be authorized or taken at a meeting of the members, except the election of Board members, may be authorized or taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, and in writing or writings signed by not less than a majority of the Members. Any such writing shall be entered into the minute book of the Association.

#### ARTICLE III.

## **BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

- **SECTION 1.** Governing Body. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or this Code of Regulations, all of the authority of the Association shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board of Trustees.
- SECTION 2. Number and Qualification of Trustees. The initial Board of Trustees in the Association shall consist of five (5) persons and shall be those named in the resolution of the members approving this Code of Regulations. All Trustees must be Owners. The spouse of an Owner is qualified to act as a Trustee if both the Owner and the spouse occupy the Lot. No person and his or her spouse may serve on the Board at the same time.
- SECTION 3. Nomination of Trustees. Nominations for election of the Board of Trustees shall be made by a Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board, and two (2) or more Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board at each annual meeting of the Members to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it shall in its discretion determine but in no event less than the number of vacancies or terms to be filled. Nominations shall also be permitted from the floor. All candidates shall have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the Members and to solicit votes.
- **SECTION 4. Election of Trustees.** The Trustees shall be elected at each annual meeting of the Members of the Association or at a special meeting called for the purpose of electing Trustees. At a meeting of Members of the Association at which Trustees are to be elected, only persons nominated as candidates shall be eligible for election as Trustees and the candidates receiving the greatest number of votes shall be elected. The Board may adopt rules regarding nominations and procedure for elections. Election to the Board shall be by secret written ballot, and at such elections, the Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, such voting power as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration.
- SECTION 5. Term of Office; Resignations. Each Trustee shall hold office for a term of two (2) years and until his or her successor is elected, or until his or her earlier resignation, removal from office, or death. It is intended by these Code of Regulations that the terms of the Trustees shall be staggered with three (3) Trustees being elected in odd numbered years and two (2) Trustees being elected in even numbered years. The initial terms of the Trustees elected by the Owners shall be adjusted to carry out this intent.

Any Trustee may resign at any time by oral statement to that effect made at a meeting of the Board of Trustees or in writing to that effect delivered to the

837-4

71832767.3

Secretary of the Association; such resignation to take effect immediately or at such other time as the Trustee may specify. In the event of death or resignation of a Trustee, his or her successor shall be selected by a majority of the remaining members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

- **SECTION 6.** Compensation. Members of the Board of Trustees and officers of the Association shall serve without compensation, except that they may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred on behalf of the Association.
- SECTION 7. Removal of Trustees. At any regular or special meeting of the Association duly called, any one or more of the members of the Board of Trustees may be removed, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members, and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. A Trustee whose removal has been proposed shall be given at least ten (10) days notice of the calling of the meeting and the purposes thereof and shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. Additionally, any Trustee who has three (3) unexcused absences from Board meetings or who is delinquent in payment of an Assessment for more than twenty (20) days may be removed by a majority vote of the Trustees at meeting, a quorum being present.
- **SECTION 8.** Organization Meetings. The first meeting of the Board of Trustees following each annual meeting of the Members shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Board.
- **SECTION 9.** Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Trustees, but at least four (4) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year with at least one (1) per quarter.
- **SECTION 10. Special Meetings.** Special meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held when called by written notice signed by the President or Secretary of the Association or by any two (2) Trustees. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered.
- **SECTION 11. Notice of Meetings; Waiver.** Notice of the time and place of each meeting of the Trustees, whether regular or special, shall be given to each Trustee at least seventy-two (72) hours before the time set for the meeting.

Waiver of notice of meetings of the Trustees shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Trustee may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Board, either before or after the holding of such meeting. Such writing shall be entered into the minutes of the meeting. Attendance of any Trustee at any meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack of proper notice shall be deemed to be a waiver by him or her of notice of that meeting.

SECTION 12. Quorum of the Board of Trustees. At all meetings of the Board of Trustees, a majority of the Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting

837/5

at which quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of the Trustees, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting. Notice of adjournment of a meeting need not be given if the time and place to which it is adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted.

- SECTION 13. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Trustees; and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in the minute book and all resolutions adopted, as well as a record of all transaction occurring thereat.
- **SECTION 14. Open Meetings.** All meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be open to all Members of the Association, but Members other than the Trustees may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless expressly so authorized by a majority of a quorum of the Board.
- **SECTION 15. Executive Session**. The Board may, with approval of a majority of a quorum, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, or orders of business of similar nature. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.
- SECTION 16. Action Without a Meeting. Any action, which may be authorized or taken at a meeting of the Board of Trustees may be authorized or taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, and in writing or writings signed by all the Trustees. Any such writing shall be entered into the minute book of the Association. An explanation of the action taken shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Property within three (3) business days after written consents of all the Board members have been obtained.
- **SECTION 17. Voting by Trustees.** A Trustee who is present at a meeting of the Board or any committee meeting when corporate action is taken shall be deemed to have assented to the action taken unless:
- a) He or she objects at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly upon arrival) to holding it or transacting business at the meeting;
- b) His or her dissent or abstention from the action taken is entered in the minutes of the meeting; or
- c) He or she delivers written notice of his or her dissent or abstention to the presiding officer of the meeting before its adjournment or to the Association immediately after adjournment of the meeting. This right of dissent or abstention shall not be available to a Trustee who votes in favor of the action taken.

837/6

71832767.3

## ARTICLE IV.

## **OFFICERS**

- SECTION 1. Officers. The officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The Board of Trustees may elect such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, excepting the offices of President and Secretary. The President and Treasurer shall be elected from among members of the Board of Trustees.
- SECTION 2. Election; Term of Office, Vacancies. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Trustees at the first meeting of the Board following each annual meeting of the Members, as herein set forth in Article III. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the terms.
- **SECTION 3.** Removal. Any officer may be removed by the Board of Trustees whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association would be served thereby.
- SECTION 4. Powers and Duties. The officers of the Association shall each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties as may from time to time specifically conferred or imposed by the Board. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The Treasurer shall have the primary responsibility for the preparation of the budget and may delegate all or part of the preparation and notification duties to a finance committee, management agent or both.
- **SECTION 5. Resignation.** Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Trustees, the President, or the Secretary, such resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

### ARTICLE V.

## COMMITTEES

**SECTION 1.** General. Committees to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting which a quorum is present are hereby authorized. Such committees shall perform such duties and have such powers as may be provided in the resolution. Each committee shall be composed as required by law and operate in accordance with the terms of the resolution of the Board designating such committee or with rules adopted by the Board and to the full extent permitted by law.

71832767.3

- **SECTION 2. Executive Committee.** The Board of Trustees may, by resolution adopted or signed by all of the Trustees, appoint an Executive Committee to consist of three (3) Trustees. The Board may delegate any or all of its duties to such committee. Any resolution or writing appointing such committee must acknowledge the responsibility of all the Trustees for the operation and administration of the Association.
- **SECTION 3. Design Review Committee.** The Board of Trustees may appoint a Design Review Committee which shall be responsible for plan approval in accordance with Article VI of the Declaration. In addition, the committee shall develop and promulgate architectural standards and guidelines with respect to those matters that are within the Association's authority to regulate.

#### ARTICLE VI.

## **DETERMINATION AND PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS**

- SECTION 1. Adoption of Budget. It shall be the duty of the Board to prepare and adopt a budget covering the estimated Common Expenses and other expenses of the Association for the coming fiscal year. The budget shall also include a capital contribution or reserve in accordance with a capital budget separately prepared. After adoption of the budget, the Board shall cause a summary of the budget showing the Assessments to be levied against each Lot for the following year to be delivered to each Owner. Such summary shall be delivered at least thirty (30) days prior to the start of the fiscal year. The budget and Assessments shall take effect on the first day of the fiscal year.
- SECTION 2. Capital Budget and Contribution. The Board shall annually prepare a capital budget, which shall take into account the number and nature of replaceable assets, the expected life of each asset, and the expected repair or replacement cost. The Board shall set the required capital contribution, if any, in an amount sufficient to permit meeting the projected capital needs of the Association, as shown on the capital budget, with respect to both amount and timing by annual assessments over the period of the budget. The capital contribution required shall be fixed by the Board and included within the budget and assessment, as provided in Section 1 of this Article. A copy of the capital budget shall be distributed to each Owner in the same manner as the operating budget.
- SECTION 3. Petition for Reconsideration of Budget Increase. If the Board receives a petition for reconsideration of budget increase as set forth in Article V, Section 5.6 of the Declaration, then the Board shall forthwith call a special meeting of the Members. At such meeting, the Members in good standing, in person on by proxy, exercising at least sixty-six and two thirds (66.66%) percent of voting power of the Association, may vote to reduce the increase by any amount proposed in the petition, but not lower than the previous year's budget.
- **SECTION 4.** Failure to Adopt Budget. The failure or delay of the Board to adopt a budget as provided herein shall not constitute a waiver or release of the

8378

obligation of an Owner to pay the Assessments. In such event, the Assessments based upon the budget last adopted shall continue until such time as the Board adopts a new budget.

- SECTION 5. Computation of Assessments. The Assessments for Common Expenses for each Lot shall be determined in accordance with the operating budget and the capital contribution budget as they apply to the various Lots. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, all Assessments shall be charged on an annual basis.
- SECTION 6. Payment, Delinquency and Acceleration. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, all Assessments shall be payable annually. Any installment of an Assessment shall become delinquent if not paid on the due date as established by the Board. With respect to each installment of an Assessment not paid within five (5) days after its due date, the Board may, at its election, require the Owner to pay a reasonable late charge, together with interest at the rate provided in Section 1343.03 of the Ohio Revised Code calculated from the date of delinquency to and including the date full payment is received by the Association. If any installment of an Assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after its due date, the Board may, at its election, declare all of the unpaid balance of the Assessment for the then current fiscal year, attributable to that Lot to be immediately due and payable without further demand and may enforce collection of the full Assessment and all charges thereon in any manner authorized by law, the Declaration, and this Code of Regulations.
- SECTION 7. Remedies for Default. If an Owner is in default of payment of an Assessment, the Board may authorize collection through any lawful means, including foreclosure of the lien. Interest and all costs of such collection, including but not limited to court costs, lien fees, attorney fees shall be included in the amount due from the Owner and may be collected. The Board may authorize the Association to bid its interest at any foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage and convey any Lot.

## ARTICLE VII.

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

- **SECTION 1. Fiscal Year.** The Association may adopt any fiscal year as determined by the Board.
- SECTION 2. Parliamentary Rules. Except as may be modified by the Board resolution establishing modified procedures, Robert's Rules of Order (current edition) shall govern the conduct of Association proceedings when not in conflict with Ohio law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or this Code of Regulations.
- SECTION 3. Conflicts. If there are conflicts or inconsistencies between the provisions of Ohio law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and this Code of Regulations, the provisions of Ohio law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and this Code of Regulations (in that order) shall prevail.

837.9

## SECTION 4. Books and Records.

- a) Inspection by Members. The membership book, account books and minutes of the Association, the Board, and any committee shall be made available for inspection and copying by any Member or by his or her duly appointed representative at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to his or her interest as a Member at the office of the Association or at such other place within Medina County, Ohio, as the Board shall prescribe.
- b) Rules for Inspection. The Board shall establish reasonable rules with respect to:
  - (i) notice to be given to the custodian of the records by the Members desiring to make the inspection;
  - (ii) hours and days of the week when such inspection may be made; and
  - (iii) payment of the cost of reproducing copies requested by a Member.
- c) Inspection by Trustees. Every Trustee shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association. The right of inspection by a Trustee includes the right to make extracts and copies of documents at the expense of the Association.
- **SECTION 5. Notices.** Unless otherwise provided in this Code of Regulations, all notices, demands, bills, statements, or other communications under this Code of Regulations shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or sent by telegram, telecopy, or electronic mail transmission or by United States mail, express mail, or courier service with postage or fees prepaid:

if to a Member, at the address that the Member has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address has been designated, at the address of the residence of the Owner; or

if to the Association, the Board of Trustees, or the Managing Agent at the principal office of the Association or the Managing Agent, if any, or at such other address as shall be designated by the Board with written notice to the Owners.

In computing the period of time for the giving of a notice required or permitted under the articles, the regulations, or the bylaws of the Association, or a resolution of its Members or Trustees, the day on which the notice is given shall be excluded, and the day when the act for which notice is given is to be done shall be included, unless the instrument calling for the notice otherwise provides. If notice is given by personal delivery or transmittal by telegram, telecopy, or electronic mail, the

10 857-10

notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered or transmitted. If notice is sent by United States mail, express mail, or courier service, the notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the mail or with the courier service.

A written notice or report delivered as part of a newsletter other publication regularly sent to the Members shall constitute a written notice or report if addressed or delivered to the Member's address shown in the Association's current list of members, or, in the case of Members who are residents of the same household and who have the same address in the Association's current list of Members, if addressed or delivered to one of such Members at the address appearing on the Association's current list of Members.

**SECTION 6.** Amendment. Except as otherwise provided by law or the Declaration, this Code of Regulations may be amended by a majority of the Members..

SECTION 7. Financial Review. A review of the accounts of the Association shall be made annually in the manner as the Board of Trustees may decide, provided, however, after having received the Board's report at the annual meeting, the Owners, by majority vote, may require the accounts of the Association to be audited as a Common Expense by a public accountant.

Adopted this 15 day of November, 2011.

{Remainder of page intentionally left blank - signature pages follow}

OLSON PRODUCTS, INC. (owner of Lots 4 through 8, 30, 32 through 34, 37 and 38) STATE OF OHIO SS: COUNTY OF Medina BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named State, personally of Olson Products, Inc, who acknowledged that he/she did sign the foregoing instrument and that the same is the corporation's free act and deed. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at PNC Bank, Ohio, this 15 day of November, 2011. MELISSA KURTZ NOTARY PUBLIC - OHIO

71513912.1

13

Field Code Changed
Field Code Changed

71636167,1

15

Lot 3 Owners:
30 Pla - Rosembi
John A. Sobocinski
Fath Lobocenski
Faith Sobocinski
STATE OF OHIO ) SS: COUNTY OF MEDINA )
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named John A. Sobocinski and Faith Sobocinski, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at MEDINA. Ohio, this 7 day of MAY., 2011.
Qua C. Sederberchi
COHHISSION EXP. NOU IS NOTARY PUBLIC
8011

Field Code Changed
Field Code Changed

71636167,1

16

Julianne L. DeMarco
V
•
STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF Media ) SS:
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Thomas J. DeMarco and Julianne L. DeMarco, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at, Ohio, this day of, 2011.
NOTARY PUBLIC
NICHOLAS A. STAMM Notary Public, State of Ohio My Comm. Expires 12-01-2014

Lot 9 Owners:

71603415.1

83716

Lot 12 Owners:	
David Hebert	)
Julie Hebert	
<b>SS:</b>	

STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY OF MEDINA

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named David Hebert and Julie Hebert, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at dire, Ohio, this 10th day of\_

JANIE B. LAPINA Notary For The State of Ohle My Commission Expires &

71513912.1

Lot 13 Owner:

Roberta Fogel

STATE OF OHIO	)
COUNTY OF Medina	) SS: )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Roberta Fogel, who acknowledged that she did sign the foregoing instrument as her free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Medina. Ohio, this (2 to day of June., 2011.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Patricia M. Vasi Notary Public, State of Ohio Commission expires May 25, 2012

71513912.1

18

Lot 14 Owner:

Ungura H. Lucu

Virginia Greens

STATE OF OHIO	00
COUNTY OF Machine	) SS: )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Virginia Georgewho acknowledged that she did sign the foregoing instrument as her free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Middle , Ohio, this // day of // 2011.

NOTARY PUBLIC



NICHOLAS A. STAMM Notary Public, State of Ohio My Comm. Expires 12-01-2014

71513912.1

10

Lot 16 Owners:
AAN TO THE TOTAL THE TOTAL TO T
Steven Minardi
Manearette. Minarch
() Margaret Minardi
STATE OF OHIO ) SS: COUNTY OF Medma)
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Steven Minardi and Margaret Minardi, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at notion of this indicated and official seal at notion of the notion of t
Findly a Robinser NOTARY PUBLIC

TIMOTHY A. ROBINSON
Notary Tublic, State of Ohio
My Commission Expires Jan. 24, 2016

71514079.1

21

Earle Olson

Rosemary Olson

Sagrange S

STATE OF OHIO ) SS

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Earle Olson and Rosemary Olson, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed

Melissa Kury NOTARY PUBLIC



71513912.1

18

83221

Lot 19 Owner:
Norm Mknechler the Doris D. Buechler, Trustee
STATE OF OHIO  ) SS:  COUNTY OF (Medicia )
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Doris D. Buechler, Trustee, who acknowledged that she dissign the foregoing instrument as her [and the trust's] free act and deed.
Med in TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at day of May . 2011.
Mouia Wolf NOTARY PUBLIC
The state of the s

MARIA WOLF
Notary Public, State of Ohio
My Commission Expires
September 02, 2015

24

Lot 21 Owners:

STATE OF OHIO

SS:

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Leonard J. Timpone and Elizabeth M. Timpone, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at dine, Ohio, this /3th day of // 2011.

MICHELLE R. COFFEE, NOTARY STATE OF OHIO
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 05/27/2014

71603416.1

Lot 22 Owner:

Gail Ann Sommers, Trustee

STATE OF OHIO ) SS

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Gail Ann Sommers, Trustee, who acknowledged that she did sign the foregoing instrument as her **[and the trusts]** free act and deed

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Mudura, 2010. 2011.

NOTARY PUBLIC

MICHELLE R. COFFEE, NOTARY STATE OF OHIO MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 05/27/2014

;

John C. Wikex J. and Carol J. Wilcox Trustees of the Wilcox Family Trust, dated July 9, 491
John C. Wilcox, Jr., Trustee
Carol J. Wilcox, Trustee  Carol J. Welson
STATE OF OHIO ) SS: COUNTY OF Medica
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named John C. Wilcox, Jr. and Carol J. Wilcox, Trustee, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at day of May . 2011.
Jamie R. Neison Notary Public - State of Ohio My Commission Expires 11-21-2015

Field Code Changed

71836167,1

27

Lot 26 Owners:
0 0 -1
Jane Tulin
James P. Tucker
Jan Q Jahr
Jane A. Tucker
(
STATE OF OURO
STATE OF OHIO ) SS:
COUNTY OF Media )
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally
appeared the above named James P. Tucker and Jane A. Tucker, who acknowledged
that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at
Moderne, Ohio, this 10th day of May 2011.
NOTARY PUBLIC
allitte.
NICHOLAS A. STAMM
Notary Public, State of Ohlo My Comm. Expires 12-01-2014
SOF OF
within.

Field Code Changed

71636167<sub>s</sub>1

28

Sonida R. Jaseu
Linda R. Tutelian
STATE OF OHIO ) SS:
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Linda R. Tutelian, who acknowledged that she did sign the foregoing instrument as her free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at house, Ohio, this 19th day of how . 2011.
$\int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{0}^{\infty} \int_{0$
NOTARY PUBLIC



Field Code Changed

71636167,1

29

83127

Lot 31 Owners:
Terry D. Schuster, Trustee 716 5/7/1/ NOT ON THE DEE
Tami & Shuster
Tami L. Schuster, Trustee
STATE OF OHIO ) SS:
COUNTY OF MEDINA
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Terry D. Schuster and Tami L. Schuster, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their [and the trust's] free act and deed.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at MEDINA , Ohio, this 7 day of MAY , 2011.
Coreniss 10 N EXP. NOV 15 2011 NOTARY PUBLIC

71514079.1

31

	·
	Catheen L. Cour
	Cathleen Corwon
	Cathreign
	-
	•
STATE OF OHIO )	
COUNTY OF Medina) SE	<b>3:</b>
COUNTY OF / ( Louma )	•
4	•
BEFORE ME. a Notary Public. i	in and for said County and State, personally
	Corwon and Catheen Corwon, who acknowledged
that they did sign the foregoing instrum	
• • •	
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I	have hereunto set my hand and official seal at lay of, 2011.
05 Flores Star Ohio this 13 d	av of 2000 2011
	-, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -
. Il federa	U
	0
•	tandre Stanling
	NOTARY PUBLIC
•	SUPY FILE
•	
•	SANDRA V. GANLEY
	Notary Public, State of Ohio My Comm. Expires Dec. 7, 2014
	1.0E.9E

Lot 35 Owners:

Anthony Corvon

71513912.1

CODE OF REG

31

Lot 36 Owners:	
Sua Pr. Suiti	
Linda M. Sıntic	
Bure and I id a	
Lawrence Sintic	
STATE OF OHIO )	
) SS:	
COUNTY OF Medina	
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Linda M. Sintic and Lawrence Sintic, who acknowledged	
that they did sign the foregoing instrument as their free act and deed.	
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at	
Wadsworth, Ohio, this 5th day of May, 2011.	
Michelle Scheeter Resident Medina County	
Resident Medina County Notary Public, State of Ohio My Commission Expires: 02/05/12	
/ fille was	
NOTARY PUBLIC	
	Reid Code Changed

831/30

33

71838187,1

Fleid Code Changed

# Lot 39 Owners:

Jeffrey M. Collins

Roseanne Hastings

STATE OF OHIO ) SS COUNTY OF MEDINA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared the above named Jeffrey M. Collins and Roseanne Hastings, who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing Instrument as their free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal at MEDINA, Ohio, this 13 day of JUNE, 2011.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission upires 4-5-15

71513912.1

33

837/31

# EXIBIT A LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Situated in the Township of Medina County of Medina and State of Ohio and known as being the whole of Block "A" of the Lake Medina Reserve Subdivision PH. 1 of part of Original Medina Township Lots 58 & 69 as shown by the recorded plat in Document No. 2004PL000115 of Medina County Records, as appears by said plat, be the same more or less but subject to all legal highways.

PPN: 026-06D-22-028

and

Situated in the Township of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio and known as being the whole of Sublots 1 through 8 inclusive, Sublots 28 through 39 Inclusive and Block "A" in Falcon Pointe at Lake Medina Reserve Subdivision Phase 1 of part of Original Medina Township Lots 58 & 69 as shown by the recorded replat in Document No. 2004PL000129 of Medina County Records, as appears by said replat, be the same more or less but subject to all legal highways.

PPNS: 026-06D-22-031; 026-06D-22-032; 026-06D-22-033; 026-06D-22-034; 026-06D-22-035; 026-06D-22-036; 026-06D-22-037; 026-06D-22-038; 026-06D-22-050; 026-06D-22-049; 026-06D-22-048; 026-06D-22-047; 026-06D-22-046; 026-06D-22-045; 026-06D-22-044; 026-06D-22-043; 026-06D-22-042; 026-06D-22-041; 026-06D-22-040; 026-06D-22-039

and

Situated in the Township of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio, and known as being the whole of Sublots 9 through 27 inclusive and Block "A1" in Falcon Pointe at Lake Medina Reserve Subdivision Phase 2, of part of Original Medina Township Lots 58 & 69, as shown by the recorded replat in Document No. 2005PL000146 of Medina County Records, as appears by said plat, be the same more or less but subject to all legal highways.

PPNS: 026-06D-22-068; 026-06D-22-069; 026-06D-22-070; 026-06D-22-071; 026-06D-22-072; 026-06D-22-073; 026-06D-22-074; 026-06D-22-075; 026-06D-22-076; 026-06D-22-077; 026-06D-22-078; 026-06D-22-079; 026-06D-22-080; 026-06D-22-081; 026-06D-22-082; 026-06D-22-083; 026-06D-22-084; 026-06D-22-085; 026-06D-22-086.

Proposed by David Allen Tast Stattenius & Hallader LLP